
        TOWN OF KITTERY 
      200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 
Telephone: (207) 475-1329 Fax: (207) 439-6806 
                                

              
 

             
September 23, 2019     Kittery Town Council 

   Regular Meeting 
                    6:00 p.m. 

      
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Introductory 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.         Roll Call   
 
5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption 
 
6. Town Manager’s Report   
 
7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes  
 
8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board  
 
9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town  

consultants or requested offices.  
 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

      a. (090219-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing to Amend      
          Title 10 – No Parking at Walker and Main Streets.   

 
                  b. (090219-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing for a              
                      new Victualer’s License for Baker Bobby Pizzaiolo – Mobile Food Unit to be           
                      located at 230 US Route 1 Bypass Kittery.  

      
11. DISCUSSION 

a.  Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person)  
b.  Response to public comment directed to a particular Councilor 
c.  Chairperson’s response to public comments 

 
 
12.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
13. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a.  Donations/gifts received for Council disposition  
 
     (090219-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept a donation in the amount   
     of $250 from an anonymous donor to be deposited into the Thresher Memorial     
     Fund.  

 



 
b.  (090219-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement             
     warrants. 
 
c.  (090219-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the FY 20 Senior              
     Tax Credit Transfer.  

 
       d.  (090219-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor              
                       License application from the Black Birch, 2 Government St.                               
            Kittery.  
 
                  e. (090219-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor License 
                      application from When Pigs Fly Pizzeria, 460 US Route 1 Kittery.  
 
                  f.  (090219-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve and sign the Municipal     
                      Warrant for the November 05, 2019 Municipal and State election.   
   
                  g.  (090219-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the Ordinance                  
                       Approving Additional Local Funds for School Budget for Fiscal                               
                       Year 2019-2020.   
 
                  h.  (090219-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from The        
                        Kiwanis Club of the Seacoast to hold their annual Kittery Holiday Parade on        
                        Saturday December 7, 2019 with a rain date of December 8.   
        
       i.  (090219-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from the Traip 
                       Athletic Boosters to hang a banner from October 21st through October 25th to       
                       promote their craft fair.   
 
       j.   (090219-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to adopt the Annual General            
                       Assistance Appendices A-D and Appendix H 2019-2020 year.   
 
       k.  (090219-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve and to set its December 
                       meeting to December 9. 

  
 
14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 
 
15.   COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 
 

a. Communications from the Chairperson  
b. Committee Reports  

     
16.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
            a. (090219-14) The Kittery Town Council moves to go into Executive Session to              
                complete the Town Manager’s Annual Review. 
 
17.   ADJOURNMENT     
         
Posted: September 19, 2019 
 



 

 
Town Manager’s Report to the Town Council 

September 23, 2019 
 

1. Joint Land Use Study – The strategies analysis phase of the Joint Land Use Study kicked off last 
week. This phase included a meeting on Sep 16th of 30 people representing the PNSY, Kittery, 
SMPDC, NHDOT, MDOT, COAST, surrounding regional planning agencies, cities and town, and 
others with expertise and resources to support the goal of reducing the impact of traffic from the 
PNSY.   

 
The Policy Committee will be reviewing the strategies prioritized in that meeting and working with the 
consultants to finalize a report and plan.  We have already begun working with our OEA administrator 
to identify funding opportunities at the federal level to assist with implementation of some of the 
strategies.   
 

2. Route 236 Study – Gorrill Palmer has completed the Route 236 Traffic Study. The recommendations 
include creating an intermittent center turning lane down Route 236 to provide safe turning space for 
cars coming onto and off of the road.  The plan also includes recommendations to realign driveways, 
upgrade the intersection at Beech Road, create a right turn pocket at Bolt Hill Road, and make the 
north side of Fernald Road a one-way northbound for approximately 35 feet.   A copy of the report is 
available on the Town’s website, on the Town Manager’s webpage. 
 
Recent borings taken on Route 236 were encouraging in terms of the center-turn lane strategy.  MDOT 
is planning to repave and stripe the road in the coming year, creating an opportunity to implement the 
recommendation in the near future.   
 

3. LED Streetlight Conversion – The streetlights purchase has been completed, and all of the public 
streetlights have been mapped and documented.  There has been a delay in the installation of the new 
LED lights due to changes in how the State Electrical Inspector was approaching these projects.  This 
has been resolved and the installation is expected to begin the first week of October and take 
approximately three weeks to complete. 
 

4. Sightlines at Whipple and Wentworth – Councilor Spiller asked that we look further into parking at 
the corner of Whipple and Wentworth, and the safe visual sightlines at that intersection. Code 
Enforcement staff have had ongoing discussions with the gas station owner about the safe sightlines, 
and are working with them to resolve the issue. 

 
Prior to the request being raised, we have been working with the Town Attorney to better understand 
what is right of way and what is private land.  We are still reviewing the information from that effort 
to determine next steps.   
 
 

5. Fort Foster Season – Councilor Denault requested we look into keeping Fort Foster open until 
Columbus Day.  The gate is manned by our seasonal staff on the weekends.  The majority of our 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
Office of the Town Manager 

200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
kamaral@kitteryme.org  



 

seasonal staff are done before the end of September.  We have one seasonal staff member left, who 
will be returning to school at the end of September.  Unfortunately, we do not have the staff to man the 
gate into October. 

 
 

6. Old Post Road/Dineen – The judge granted the Town’s motion to remove the unregistered and 
inoperable vehicles from Old Post Road and dispose of them, and to erect a fence as a deterrent to 
bringing more vehicles on site.  The removal of the vehicles and installation of the fence is complete. 
 
Mr. Dineen filed a motion to overturn the judge’s order.  A stay was granted by a judge who has not 
been involved in this case.  The stay prevents the Town from demolishing or disposing of the vehicles 
removed from the property.  We are due back in court in the coming week to argue against Mr. 
Dineen’s filing. 

 
Upcoming Dates: 

 Absentee Ballot Applications Available – Town Clerk’s Office 
 Community Shredding Event – September 29, 10AM – 1PM, Rice Public Library 
 Tax Bill Mailing – September 30th 
 Candidate Night – October 2, 6PM, Council Chambers 
 Rice Library Renovation/Expansion Informational Meeting – October 9, 6PM, Council Chambers 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Kendra Amaral 
Town Manager 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

1 

          1 
 2 

Kittery Town Council 3 
March 25, 2019 4 

Regular Meeting 5 
Town Council Chambers 6 

 7 
1. Call to Order:   Chairperson Spiller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 8 
 9 
2. Introductory:     Chairperson Spiller read the introductory. 10 
 11 
3. Pledge of Allegiance:   Chairperson Spiller led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 12 
 13 
4.         Roll Call:   Answering the roll were Councilors Charles Denault, Jeffrey Pelletier, Jeffrey 14 
Thomson, Cyrus Clark, Kenneth Lemont, Vice-Chair Matthew Brock and Chairperson Judith Spiller.  15 
 16 
5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption:  Chairperson Spiller had one item to add under #9:  “The 17 
Kittery Town Council moves to receive a presentation from Supt. Mike Rogers of the Kittery Water 18 
District on water treatment processes and chloramines.” 19 
 20 
6. Town Manager’s Report:   Town Manager Amaral reported that the first phase of addressing tax 21 
liens from prior years, which began last year, was to adopt policies which would provide taxpayers with 22 
a number of circuit breakers for tax relief.  She said the second part of this project is to address the 23 
properties that have been in long-term foreclosure, which have gone on for many years, without having 24 
received any tax payments on them.   25 
 26 
Town Manager Amaral said they re getting ready to take the second step and have identified 12 27 
properties where the town will pursue foreclosure and acquire the title, most of them the owners are 28 
deceased and none of them are occupied.  She said the town is working with Atty. Bill Dale on this 29 
project.  She said she would like to address this every year and letters are going out. 30 
 31 
Town Manager Amaral said the Library Building Committee ‘s Design Team has been conducting 32 
interviews with various Town boards and committees as well as the community to see what type of 33 
uses and spaces people are looking for.  She said they came back with a revised spatial needs report 34 
which will be updated from 2011.  She said the square footage has been reduced from 20,000 to 35 
16,000 s.f. and the town will require a $5 million-dollar maximum bond for this project. 36 
 37 
Town Manager Amaral said it is very early in the process and they will be getting some potential 38 
schematic designs and getting plans and will hold public hearings in April.   She said all of this 39 
information has been posted online. 40 
 41 
Town Manager Amaral said the Taylor Building Committee is working quite nicely.  She said they want 42 
to meet to get public input on what do you want to see at the Taylor site.  She said they will be 43 
spending the next couple of months gathering information and input and, after November if passed, will 44 
start pursuing more concrete proposals for the Taylor Building, based on the feedback from the people. 45 
 46 
Town Manager Amaral said that the Thresher Memorial Fund and Donald Kerr have been in 47 
communication and the repair of the large flag was funded from the Thresher Memorial Fund.            48 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

2 

Town Manager Amaral said it was the intention of the people who donated money to get this fund 49 
through the Fall of 2018 and within the last few months, the fund has been depleted. 50 
 51 
Town Manager Amaral said the flags have been repaired through this fund and they have two other 52 
flags available as replacements.  She wanted to let Council know that she will put this item in the 53 
operating budget, going forward. 54 
 55 
Town Manager Amaral reported that the DOT workshop, scheduled for last month, will now be held on 56 
April 8th.  She said that the bids for the 95 bridge have come in higher than expected.  She said they 57 
met with the resident engineer today, and are starting ramping up the project. 58 
 59 
Town Manager Amaral stated that she reached out to the Dept. of Marine Resources to see where they 60 
were on the (Spinney Creek) aquaculture lease.  She said they are still in the drafting a decision phase 61 
and are still reviewing the application.  She said they will let her know once they are ready to make a 62 
decision.  She said they have not given her a clear idea as to whether they will give a title and consider 63 
Spinney Creek to be inter-tidal or sub-tidal waters. 64 
 65 
Town Manager Amaral said the Recreation Director has received feedback on the programs offered for 66 
Summer Camp and have made improvements.  She said they have split the campers into three groups. 67 
 She said that transportation will be through a private bus company, not staff and they are capping the 68 
number of students in advance to make sure that the programs are beneficial to the children.  She said 69 
that the Recreation Dept. held a successful “sign-up” night. 70 
 71 
Town Manager Amaral announced some upcoming dates:  Kittery’s Got Talent, March 29th, 4:00 pm at 72 
Shapleigh School; Kittery Community Auction will be April 5th at the Regatta Room in Eliot; Celebrity 73 
Chef Breakfast is 8:00 am on April 9th at the Kittery Community Center; April 13th is the Easter Egg Hunt 74 
at Shapleigh Field; Recycling Scholarship applications are due April 16th because the Town Hall is 75 
closed for the holiday, and the Mooring Renewal deadline has also  been extended to April 18th. 76 
 77 
Chairperson Spiller asked if any Councilor had comments or questions. 78 
 79 
Councilor Denault asked the Town Manager, through the Chair, if the “Kittery’s Got Talent” program  80 
could be shown on Channel 22. 81 
 82 
Town Manager Amaral replied she will take a look at it. 83 
 84 
Vice-Chair Brock wanted to know, through the Chair to the Town Manager, if the DMR gave the Town 85 
Manager any timeframe as to when they would make a decision on the Spinney Creek aquaculture 86 
lease. 87 
 88 
Town Manager Amaral responded not at all. 89 
 90 
7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes:  None 91 
 92 
8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board:  None 93 
 94 
9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town  95 

consultants or  requested officials.  96 
 97 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

3 

 98 
The Kittery Town Council moves to receive a presentation from Michael Rogers, Supt. of the Kittery 99 
Water District, on Water Treatment Processes and chloramines. 100 
 101 
Chairperson Spiller said there will be an opportunity during the “Public Comment” section for anyone 102 
who would want to comment.  She said she will write down the questions and give them to Supt. 103 
Rogers to respond to those questions.  She said that Council will have some questions on this issue but 104 
residents must understand that the Town Council has no authority over the Kittery Water District. 105 
 106 
Michael Rogers, Supt. of the Kittery Water District, said he understood that some Councilors have been 107 
receiving calls from residents regarding the Water District changing the disinfection method from free 108 
chlorines to chloramines.  He said they are hopeful that, as water professionals serving Kittery for the 109 
past 112 years, they would never do anything that will adversely affect the health of their customers. 110 
 111 
Mr. Rogers said the Water District annually produces one billion gallons of finished drinking water, 112 
serving the residents of Kittery, Eliot, a small portion of York and the Portsmouth Naval Shipyard. 113 
He said they have used chlorine in one form of another to disinfect the water.  He said their treatment 114 
plant, as well as four water sources, are located in York. 115 
 116 
Mr. Rogers said that the Treatment Plant was built in 1959 and is approaching the end of its design life. 117 
 He said in 2012, the District hired Wright-Pierce, an engineering consultant firm, to complete an 118 
“Alternative Water Treatment Study.”  He said one of the options they looked at was mothballing the 119 
facility and buy their water from our neighbors to the north.   120 
 121 
Mr. Rogers said another recommendation was to build a new Treatment Facility at an estimated cost of 122 
$30 million dollars.  He said a second engineering firm, Taynton-Howard, was hired to do a Peer 123 
Review of Wright-Pierce’s recommendation and to renovate the existing facility and not replace it.  He 124 
said the Board of Trustees decided to renovate the existing facility because everything above and 125 
below is structurally sound and save the rate payers from bonding an additional $27 million dollars.   126 
 127 
Mr. Rogers said the operation will be done in three phases, and a requirement will be to shut down the 128 
facility to complete the project.   He said the first phase was completed in 2018 and the second phase 129 
will begin on April 1st.  He said they will need to shut down the facility for one week this summer.  He 130 
said in 2020, the final phase of construction will begin and it will require a complete shut down of the 131 
facility for three months. 132 
 133 
Mr. Rogers said during these two outages, they will be relying on the York Water District and the 134 
Kennebunk, Kennebunkport and Wells Water District to supply water to the Town of Kittery.  He said 135 
this arrangement has been in the works for three years.   136 
 137 
Mr. Rogers said that Water Districts in other towns and cities in Maine have been using chloramines 138 
from 25 – 80 years to disinfect the drinking water.  He said the chloramines are a combination of five 139 
parts chloramine to one-part ammonia.  He said chloramine is a weaker disinfectant than just chlorine, 140 
but it lasts longer and is more stable.  He said they will need to buy their water from neighbors, but their 141 
water is not currently compatible with the Kittery water.    142 
 143 
Mr. Rogers said the EPA and the Maine Drinking Water program has approved the use of chloramines. 144 
 He said they have received approval and authorization from the Dept. of Health and Human Services 145 
to increase their pH and phosphate levels and they began increasing them one year ago. 146 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

4 

 147 
Mr. Rogers said the first step is the introduction of the chloramines to condition the water in their mains. 148 
He said this could cause lead and copper corrosion issues which they have addressed.  He said their 149 
neighbors have made changes to better match Kittery’s pH and phosphate levels. 150 
 151 
Mr. Rogers said chloramine is a longer-lasting disinfectant and can affect yeast used by brewers and 152 
bakers and they have received complaints from customers.  He said they first published an article in 153 
2016 and they have put the information in the newspaper and on the water bills and it is on their 154 
website. 155 
 156 
Mr. Rogers said they are holding another meeting on May 21st at 6 p.m. at the Star Theatre and will 157 
delay the introduction of the chloramines to the first week in June.  He said he will take any questions. 158 
 159 
Chairperson Spiller asked if there were any questions from Councilors. 160 
 161 
Councilor Thomson wanted to know if individual homeowners need to do anything with their pipe that 162 
runs from pipe in the street to their kitchen or bathroom faucets. 163 
 164 
Mr. Rogers responded that the changes in pH and phosphates are used to coat the pipes to prevent 165 
corrosion in the copper and lead pipes, so there is nothing homeowners have to do.  He said as a 166 
matter of fact, they now have to do 60 samples every six months to set a baseline to follow up on any 167 
copper or lead leaching into the water. 168 
 169 
Chairperson Spiller wanted to know, for clarification, if the conditioning would take care of control 170 
corrosion of the potential for lead to get in her drinking water, since she owns an old home with lead 171 
pipes. 172 
 173 
Mr. Rogers replied that is correct, a lower pH water is less aggressive, increasing the pH to 8.2 will help 174 
stop the effects of corrosion. 175 
 176 
Chairperson Spiller said she has heard from nervous homeowners with the same question and she has 177 
a follow-up question.  She said they want to know how do they know if their water is safe. 178 
 179 
Mr. Rogers answered that he would be happy to test their water. 180 
 181 
Chairperson Spiller asked so all they have to do is call the Water Dept. 182 
 183 
Mr. Rogers replied yes, they can call us and the Water Dept. will do a test. 184 
 185 
Chairperson Spiller wanted to know if Mr. Rogers would actually go their home. 186 
 187 
Mr. Rogers responded that the lead and copper testing has to be done by the home owner because 188 
there is a six-hour waiting period and they have to give it (the test) time for the lead and copper to leach 189 
into the water.  He said he cannot go to the house unless it is first thing in the morning. 190 
 191 
Chairperson Spiller asked if Mr. Rogers would give them guidance and he replied that they would. 192 
 193 
Vice-Chair Brock asked Mr. Rogers suppose the homeowner does not want chloramine in their water – 194 
what is the least expensive method for them to have it removed. 195 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

5 

 196 
Mr. Rogers replied they would have to use a granule-operated carbon filter which they would screw on 197 
to the faucet to remove the chloramines.  He said it would be just for one faucet. 198 
 199 
Vice-Chair Brock wanted to know is there something more expansive that someone could do if he/she 200 
wants to treat the water for their entire home.  He said he has heard there may be an impact issue on 201 
the water and what is the cost. 202 
 203 
Mr. Rogers answered that for the whole house, the filer ranges from $1100-1200 for a granule-operated 204 
carbon filter. 205 
 206 
Councilor Denault said that Mr. Rogers mentioned testing and wanted to know if it is offered for free. 207 
 208 
Mr. Rogers replied yes. 209 
 210 
Councilor Denault said he has seen a lot of hype how it kills fish and he is concerned about diabetes, 211 
his Dad has it, and dialysis.   He wanted to know if Mr. Rogers could talk about it since they are starting 212 
the process May 21st. 213 
 214 
Mr. Rogers responded if you have fish in an aquarium, you should have taken the chlorines out.  He 215 
said think about the dilution factor and that dialysis is the same thing and you should filter the water.  216 
He said it may be an additional step, but he should already be conditioning the water before they put it 217 
through the machine. 218 
 219 
Councilor Denault said he is talking about one goldfish in a bowl. 220 
 221 
Mr. Rogers said he has one in the office and he shows people how 1.7 drops filters 100 gallons of 222 
water.  223 
 224 
Councilor Lemont said Mr. Rogers touched upon brewers and bakers and he wanted to know if Mr. 225 
Rogers had discussed this with them. 226 
 227 
Mr. Rogers responded they have met with the brewers and bakers and have already had filters installed 228 
in the process.  He said they would have had to buy a more advanced filter.  He said he has been 229 
calling around to the bakeries in the area and have had homeowners calling them asking what can I do. 230 
 231 
Mr. Rogers replied that he recommends they bake one loaf.   He said they can go as low as two or as 232 
high as chloramines. 233 
 234 
Councilor Lemont wanted to know when the Water Dept. flushes the hydrants is there a minute amount 235 
of chloramine in the ocean. 236 
 237 
Mr. Rogers answered they would have to de-chlorinate the water going into sensitive area and that they 238 
do have guidelines they have to follow.  He said they have devices that have Vitamin C tabs which 239 
knocks it down to barely a trace. 240 
 241 
Councilor Thomson said that Mr. Rogers mentioned other communities to the north have been using 242 
chloramines in their houses for 80 years and wanted to know if this had caused any disuse of the 243 
chloramine. 244 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

6 

 245 
Mr. Rogers answered with chloramines, they have to watch the dead-end lines and they do have a test 246 
kit.  He said they put the water main on a routine flushing schedule. 247 
 248 
Chairperson Spiller asked if someone had a respiratory problem, would they be breathing in that 249 
component. 250 
 251 
Mr. Rogers replied not that he is aware.  He said they do not remove chloramines from the water 252 
faucets. 253 
 254 
Chairperson Spiller wanted to know if the Water Dept. had been receiving complaints from bakers or 255 
people watering their garden. 256 
 257 
Mr. Rogers responded that one-quarter of a million people have drinking water with chloramines and 258 
say the water will taste better, it’s a non-issue for them. 259 
 260 
Chairperson Spiller asked Mr. Rogers if he could put information on the type of filter that homeowners 261 
can buy on the Water Dept.’s website. 262 
 263 
Mr. Rogers replied yes. 264 
 265 
Chairperson Spiller explained to the people present in the audience that, before she heard about May 266 
21st, she said she would gather questions to give to Mr. Rogers but now that she heard about the 267 
upcoming meeting, she thought it is the perfect opportunity for people to ask questions.   268 
 269 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 270 
  271 

a.  (030219-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and ordain 272 
Amendments to Title 2 – Fire Chief.   273 

 274 
Chairperson Spiller asked the Town Manager to highlight some of the changes being proposed. 275 
 276 
Town Manager Amaral said that these are two requests to clean up and make sure that the language is 277 
consistent.  She said that §2.2.3, Fire Chief, line 6 states that the Fire Chief reports to the Town 278 
Manager, and under § 2.4.8.1, line 13, we are striking out “of the citizens” as the Kittery Fire Dept 279 
services are not limited to just the citizens of our town. 280 
 281 
Chairperson Spiller said that we are trying to update the new Fire Chief position. 282 
 283 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED TO APPROVE THE UNANIMOUS CHANGES TO TITLE 2, 284 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DENAULT. 285 
 286 
Chairperson Spiller said she had not opened the public hearing yet. 287 
 288 
Councilor Thomson said that they can still move to approve the changes and she can open up the 289 
public hearing. 290 
 291 
ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, NONE IN THE 292 
NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES. 293 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

7 

 294 
Chairperson Spiller opened the public hearing at 6:35 p.m., and asked anyone wishing to speak to, for 295 
or against the amendments may do so at this time. 296 
 297 
Julie O’Connell asked if she could comment on the water issue. 298 
 299 
Chairperson Spiller explained that discussion will be under #11, that this is a public hearing for the 300 
amendments to Title 2 only.  Hearing no other comments, she closed the public hearing. 301 
 302 
Councilor Thomson suggested – through the Chair – that the Town Manager could shed some light on, 303 
and explain what the Town Council is doing so the public knows. 304 
 305 
Town Manager Amaral said that they are amending Title 2, the Fire Chief position, which should be full-306 
time and, after reviewing the duties and responsibilities, which Chief O’Brien has been doing, and 307 
working more than part-time, it is being made a full-time position.  She said he will also take on the role 308 
of the Emergency Management Director, and she is seeking approval of changes to both Title 2 and 309 
Title 8, Emergency Management Agency. 310 
 311 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 30-A, §3001 AND TOWN 312 
CHARTER §2.14, THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL HEREBY ORDAINS AMENDMENTS TO TITLE 2, 313 
PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION, FIRE CHIEF, AND TITLE 8, EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 314 
AGENCY, OF THE TOWN CODE, AS PRESENTED AND HEARD THIS EVENING.  COUNCILOR 315 
DENAULT SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN 316 
THE AFFIRMATIVE, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES. 317 

 318 
b.  (030219-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing and consider for 319 

approval a New Victualer’s License application for the Hampton Inn & Suites located at 320 
275 Route 1 Kittery, Maine.  321 

 322 
Chairperson Spiller said that the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the necessary inspections of 323 
the premises and found the establishment to be in compliance with the Kittery Town Code. 324 
 325 
Chairperson Spiller opened the public hearing at 6:38 p.m. and asked if anyone wished to speak to, for 326 
or against the application.  Hearing none, she closed the public hearing.     327 
 328 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 329 
VICTUALER’S LICENSE APPLICATION (FROM 275 ROUTE 1 LLC, PORTSMOUTH) FOR THE 330 
HAMPTON INN & SUITES LOCATED AT 275 U.S. ROUTE ONE, KITTERY, MAINE, SECONDED BY 331 
COUNCILOR PELLETIER.   ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN THE 332 
AFFIRMATIVE, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES. 333 
 334 
11. DISCUSSION: 335 
 336 

a.  Discussion by members of the public (three minutes per person)  337 
 338 
Chairperson Spiller opened the public discussion and requested that anyone wishing to speak, come to 339 
the podium, identify yourself, sign in on the paper and limit your comments to three minutes. 340 
 341 
Julie O’Connell of Kittery said she has concerns about chloramines being added to her water. 342 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

8 

 343 
Ms. O’Connell said that Mr. Rogers said he did not know of any issues with towns adding chloramines 344 
to the water and some of them have been doing this for 30 – 80 years; however, there was an article in 345 
the Kennebunk Post in 2017 that the Kennebunk Water District had been using chloramines in their 346 
water to be compatible with the York Water District, from 2004 – 2010.  She said they stopped doing it 347 
in 2010 because there were mineralization of the hot water pipes going to the dishwashers of the local 348 
restaurants and the pipes were getting clogged up.  She said for a span of seven years chloramines 349 
were not used, then they changed the formula from gaseous ammonia to liquid ammonia and re-350 
introduced the chloramines so that their water could be compatible with York’s water. 351 
 352 
Ms. O’Connell said they have always had chlorine in their water and wanted to know why is that not 353 
compatible?  She said chloramines do not produce as much by-products but they have not been 354 
studied and are not regulated.  She said better the devil we know then the devil we don’t. 355 
 356 
Ms. O’Connell said that she realizes the Town Council has no authority over the Water District; 357 
however, the Council represents the citizens of the town and she would like to have a more expansive 358 
conversation with experts before we jump in.  She said she did not think it was a satisfactory 359 
explanation just because we would be compatible with York.   She encouraged the Kittery Water 360 
District to get the best answers for their customers as stated in their mission statement. 361 
 362 
Jen Thayer, 47 Martin Road, thanked Mr. Rogers for his presentation.  She said up until last weekend, 363 
she knew little to nothing about water treatment.  She said she does have real concerns though and will 364 
ask questions.  She wanted to know from Chairperson Spiller if she should e-mail her questions to her 365 
or to Mike Rogers. 366 
 367 
Chairperson Spiller said she should e-mail her questions to him. 368 
 369 
Ms. Thayer wanted to know with the conditioning of the water, is this an ongoing process and will it help 370 
eliminate leaching from the pipe.  She said chloramines dissolve slower – within six months to one 371 
year.  She said with chlorine, it dissipates within 24 hours.  She said it’s complicated and wanted to 372 
know if they were mono-chloramines, or di- or tri-chloramines. 373 
 374 
Chairperson Spiller replied this uses mono-chloramines. 375 
 376 
Ms. Thayer said her understanding is that you cannot separate them.  She said no definitive test as of 377 
2004 has been done using chloramines, as per the World Health Organization. She said it is still difficult 378 
to find any definitive data and what she found was it is on the rise and towns are stopping the use for 379 
various reasons. 380 
 381 
Ms. Thayer said it is her understanding there are less by-products but there are significant amounts of 382 
by-products formed by chloramines and there are other avenues they can pursue. 383 
 384 
Sarah Brown, 22 Main Street, said she does not know much about this issue, but you all have agreed 385 
to this change as of June 1st. 386 
 387 
Chairperson Spiller said the Town Council has nothing to do with the Kittery Water District. 388 
 389 
Ms. Brown said since we do not know about this, let us consider a longer delay and allow us to feel 390 
comfortable and give us a chance to do our homework to really fully understand it. 391 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

9 

 392 
Ms. Brown said she understands the Water District will have an information forum on May 21st, but you 393 
have a very large group of people concerned – and why not?  She asked isn’t it better to be safe than 394 
sorry? 395 
 396 
Ms. Brown said she went to the Tributary to grab a beer and just the day before she was told they had 397 
to spend $5,000 on a new system.  She said that is an incredible business which has brought value to 398 
the town and she hoped that the town will work with them.  She said they already have had to invest 399 
$5,000 to make sure their operation was not disrupted. 400 
 401 
Ms. Brown said she is working on another water issue, and has been told “everything is okay, don’t 402 
worry,” and then, later on, finds out it does affect our health.  She said let’s make sure we have a 403 
chance to investigate this.  She said they have to look at toxins environmentally and how they interact 404 
with other chemicals. 405 
 406 
Ms. Brown wanted to know if there have been studies when water is used for baby’s formula and what 407 
about pregnant mothers?  She thought they should proceed slowly.  She said water is life – and without 408 
water, where are we? 409 
 410 
Ruthanne _____ of Foye’s Lane, Kittery Point, wanted to echo Sarah’s concerns and said she is 411 
alarmed that she has not heard any real news or any good information as to why the Water District is 412 
doing this, other than compatibility.  She said that does not seem like a great reason or a solid reason. 413 
 414 
Ruthanne said she is encouraged and fearful.  She said she would like to ask the Town Council, but will 415 
e-mail Mr. Rogers, for more information, the source for the charcoal filtration systems and reliable 416 
sources of information so we are not “Googling” this.  She said she never heard of chloramines. 417 
 418 
Ruthanne said that the Water District should delay implementing this until the citizens have better 419 
information and that is her biggest concern. 420 
 421 
Laurie Watson, Kittery Point, attended the impromptu meeting on Monday, where it was explained that 422 
the Kittery Water District needs to use York’s water supply for transition for one week in April and next 423 
year for one month.  She wanted to know why they can’t go back to chlorine after that.  She said if we 424 
have emergency water, it may taste bad for a little while.  She asked when was the last time we used 425 
emergency water – 10 years ago?  She said in 10 years, they have not had one emergency. 426 
 427 
Ms. Watson said like her Dad used to say “do not borrow problems.”  She asked again why they can’t 428 
go back to using chlorine, and go to York for one month.  She said the Water District needs to 429 
communicate with people that during an emergency, the water will have a bad taste for a couple of 430 
weeks.  She said it does not seem to be enough of an issue to change by putting another chemical into 431 
our bodies. 432 
 433 
Jennifer Burrell of Kittery said, given what information she can find, personally, she would rather stick 434 
with chlorine.  She said there are so many people who are concerned, someone should ask the 435 
Governor.  She said she has no opinion on how the Water Dept. operates but there are models for 436 
public input and oversight into that relationship.  She said there should be some kind of transparency. 437 
 438 
Ms. Burrell said this issue should have been discussed in other venues rather than at a Town Council 439 
meeting.  She said this is something to consider going forward. 440 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

10 

 441 
George Dow, One Bartlett Road, said he is a member of the Parks Commission and they have been 442 
working with a number of design groups and have 7 different informational signs.  He said he wanted to 443 
make the public aware of that.  He said this is an opportunity for the Parks Commission to work with the 444 
Kittery Improvement Foundation, and if anyone would like to donate, to contact them. 445 
 446 
Mr. Dow said he was speaking tonight as the Treasurer of the Rice Library Board of Trustees and he 447 
wanted to present the audit for the year ending June 2019 and there will be one more audit on July 1st, 448 
when the Library becomes a department of the Town. 449 
 450 
Bob Gray, 14 Manson Road, Kittery said he is a member of the Kittery Historical Society and the Kittery 451 
Historical Naval Museum and wanted to let everyone know that in March of 2020 Maine will be 452 
celebrating its bicentennial.  He said he met with others to discuss how we might celebrate our 453 
bicentennial and would like to encourage anyone interested in participating to contact him at the 454 
museum at 439-3080. 455 
 456 
Mr. Gray said that if anyone thinks it that it was a slam/dunk separation from Massachusetts, you 457 
should know that everyone in the Town of Kittery voted against separating from Massachusetts.  He 458 
said this is an important date – Kittery’s 375th celebration as an incorporated town.   459 
 460 
Mr. Gray said some towns to the north are making a huge event out of Maine’s bi-centennial and if 461 
anyone would like to get on board, please feel free to contact him. 462 
 463 
 c.  Chairperson’s response to public comments: 464 
 465 
Chairperson Spiller said that Mr. Gray is Kittery’s point person for this. 466 
 467 
Chairperson Spiller said great signs and thanked Mr. Dow for the audit. 468 
 469 
Chairperson Spiller said, concerning the water additive, the Water District is a public utility, with a Board 470 
of Trustees, which is an independent governing structure, separate from the Kittery Town Council.  She 471 
said in addition to contacting Supt. Rogers, citizens should contact any member of the Board of 472 
Trustees. 473 
 474 
Chairperson Spiller turned to the Town Manager and said that May 21st is too late.  She wanted to know 475 
if perhaps the date could be moved up and would she look into it.  She said there were a lot of 476 
questions raised in public comment and Supt. Rogers is in the best position to answer those questions. 477 
 478 
Councilor Thomson said he opened Pandora’s box because he asked the Town Manager to reach out 479 
to Mike Rogers and ask him to come to this meeting because he wanted to get him on television.  He 480 
thought it would be a way to get more information out there.  He said he spoke with him about delaying 481 
the implementation and having another meeting other than May 21st.  482 
 483 
Councilor Thomson said he too is a customer and is concerned, and people are coming to Council, but 484 
you need to take your comments to the Board of Trustees and Supt. Rogers. 485 
 486 
Vice-Chair Brock wanted to know what is the appropriate administrative appeal process.  He said he 487 
has not heard clearly what the process would be and he would expect that it is on the “To Do” list to find 488 
out what the process is. 489 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

11 

 490 
12.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 491 
   492 

(030219-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint a representative to interview Linda 493 
Cheatham to be appointed to the Rice Public Library Board.   494 

 495 
Chairperson Spiller said that the Town Manager spoke with Ms. Cheatham and she is willing to serve 496 
on the Library Board of Directors. 497 
 498 
CHAIRPERSON SPILLER MOVED TO NOMINATE COUNCILOR THOMSON AS COUNCIL 499 
REPRESENTATIVE TO INTERVIEW LINDA CHEATHAM FOR HER APPOINTMENT TO THE RICE 500 
LIBRARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS.  COUNCILOR PELLETIER SECONDED THE MOTION.  ALL 501 
WERE IN FAVOR BY A VOICE VOTE, 7-0, NONE OPPOSED, MOTION CARRIES. 502 

 503 
 504 
13. NEW BUSINESS 505 

 506 
a. Donations/gifts received for Council disposition: 507 

•    (030219-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept a donation from the 508 
Kittery Sharks Jr. Football in the amount of $2,067.97 to be deposited into 509 
Donations to Kittery Community Center account #2063-67500.  510 

 511 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL ACCEPT A DONATION 512 
FROM THE KITTERY SHARKS JUNIOR FOOTBALL IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,067.97 TO BE 513 
DEPOSITED INTO DONATIONS TO THE KITTERY COMMUNITY CENTER ACCOUNT #2063-67500, 514 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR PELLETIER.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN 515 
VOTING IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES.  516 

 517 
b.  (030219-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the disbursement warrants. 518 

 519 
Chairperson Spiller read the amounts:  Town payable = $120,963.61 and two Sewer payables = 520 
$14,550.05 and $2,685.54. 521 
 522 
Chairperson Spiller asked Councilor Clark if he reviewed the warrants and if they are in the appropriate 523 
format for approval.   524 
 525 
Councilor Clark replied yes, he did and they are in the appropriate format for approval. 526 
 527 
Chairperson Spiller read the amount for the School payable, $567,813.79 and asked Councilor Pelletier 528 
if he reviewed the warrant and found it to be in the appropriate format for approval. 529 
 530 
Councilor Pelletier responded yes, he did and it is in the appropriate format for approval. 531 
 532 
Chairperson Spiller read the final warrant, Tax Refunds, in the amount of $1,491.31 and asked 533 
Councilor Clark if he reviewed the warrant and found it to be in appropriate format for approval. 534 
 535 
Councilor Clark answered yes, he had and it is in the appropriate format for approval. 536 
 537 
Chairperson Spiller said the total amount is $707,504.30 and asked for a motion. 538 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

12 

 539 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE DISBURSEMENT WARRANTS BE PAID AS READ, 540 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR PELLETIER.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN 541 
VOTING IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES. 542 
 543 

c.  (030219-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve an MOU with the Library Board of 544 
Directors.  545 
 546 
Chairperson Spiller asked if there were any changes to the Memorandum of Understanding. 547 
 548 
Town Manager Amaral said there are slight changes that reflect Council’s conversation with the Library 549 
Board of Directors at their workshop.  She said these include taking out policy from the Board and 550 
includes focusing on fundraising and taking out the second line at the Taylor Building but retains the 551 
intent that the that it will not impact Library services.  She said also the Board of Directors agrees to 552 
splitting the balance of the Arabella Rice Trust, offered by Council as a compromise.  She said the 553 
MOU should look as they saw it at the workshop. 554 
 555 
Town Manager Amaral said that for clarification in the letter, 6A of the Memorandum of Understanding, 556 
Cash Reserves, will be a gift to the town and addresses that.  She said it was left off of the original 557 
letter. 558 
 559 
COUNCILOR PELLETIER MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 560 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE RICE LIBRARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 561 
AND THE TOWN OF KITTERY, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DENAULT. 562 
 563 
Councilor Thomson asked the second of the motion if he would like to include the date of March 25th in 564 
the motion so that the town has a date certain. 565 
 566 
Councilor Denault agreed. 567 
 568 
COUNCILOR PELLETIER MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 569 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE RICE LIBRARY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 570 
AND THE TOWN OF KITTERY, DATED MARCH 25, 2019, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DENAULT. 571 
 ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, NONE IN THE 572 
NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES. 573 
 574 
Town Manager Amaral requested the Chair that Council sign all three copies of the MOU, one for the 575 
Town, one for Library Board of Directors and one for the vault. 576 

 577 
d.  (030219-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept, in principle, the gift of assets from 578 

the Rice Public Library and to direct the Town Manager to work with the Library Board of Directors on 579 
the legal documentation required for Council execution.  580 
 581 
COUNCILOR THOMSO MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL ACCEPT IN PRINCIPLE 582 
THE GIFT ASSETS FROM THE RICE PUBLIC LIBRARY, INCLUDING THE TERMINOLOGY OF THE 583 
LETTER FROM GEORGE DOW, TREASURER, TO THE TOWN MANAGER DATED MARCH 25, 584 
2019 AND DIRECT THE TOWN MANAGER TO WORK WITH THE LIBRARY BOARD OF 585 
DIRECTORS ON THE LEGAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR COUNCIL EXECUTION.  586 
COUNCILOR PELLETIER SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH 587 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

13 

SEVEN IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES. 588 
 589 
e.  (030219-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a new Liquor License application 590 

from the Hampton Inn & Suites, 275 Route 1, Kittery, Maine.   591 
 592 
Chairperson Spiller said that the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the necessary inspections 593 
and found the establishment to be in compliance with the Kittery Town Code. 594 
 595 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE NEW 596 
APPLICATION FROM 275 ROUTE 1 LLC FOR A MALT, VINOUS AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUOR 597 
LICENSE FOR THE HAMPTON INN & SUITES, 275 U.S. ROUTE ONE, KITTERY.  COUNCILOR 598 
PELLETIER SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN 599 
THE AFFIRMATIVE, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE.  MOTION CARRIES. 600 

 601 
f.  (030219-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor License 602 

application from the Dance Hall, 7 Walker Street. Kittery, Maine.   603 
 604 
Chairperson Spiller said the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the necessary inspections and 605 
found the establishment to be in compliance with the Kittery Town Code. 606 
 607 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 608 
RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A MALT AND VINOUS LIQUOR LICENSE FOR THE DANCE HALL, 609 
7 WALKER STREET, KITTERY, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR PELLETIER.  ROLL CALL VOTE 610 
WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN FAVOR, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES. 611 
 612 

g.  (030219-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Special Activity 613 
Amusement Permit for the Dance Hall, 7 Walker Street. Kittery, Maine.   614 
 615 
Chairperson Spiller said the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the necessary inspections and 616 
found the establishment to be in compliance with the Kittery Town Code. 617 
 618 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 619 
RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL ACTIVITY AMUSEMENT PERMIT FOR THE DANCE 620 
HALL, 7 WALKER STREET, KITTERY, MAINE, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR PELLETIER.  ROLL 621 
CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH 7 VOTING IN FAVOR, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, MOTION 622 
CARRIES. 623 

 624 
h.  (030219-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor License 625 

application from Badgers Island Pizza, 3 Island Avenue Kittery, Maine.  626 
 627 
Chairperson Spiller said the Code Enforcement Officer has conducted the necessary inspections and 628 
found the establishment to be in compliance with the Kittery Town Code. 629 
 630 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 631 
RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A MALT AND VINOUS LIQUOR LICENSE FROM BADGER’S 632 
ISLAND PIZZA, 3 ISLAND AVENUE, KITTERY, MAINE, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR PELLETIER. 633 
 ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH ALL VOTING IN FAVOR, MOTION CARRIES. 634 
 635 

 636 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

14 

i.  (030219-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Victualer’s License 637 
application from Lexie’s Seasonal LLC, 56 Lincoln St. Exeter, NH  03833. Lexie’s Seasonal Food Truck 638 
has permission from Post Office Square, 10 Shapleigh Road, Kittery to park his Food Truck on April 27, 639 
2019.   640 
 641 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 642 
RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A VICTUALER’S LICENSE FROM KERRY CARGILL, LEXIE’S 643 
SEASONAL LLC, 56 LINCOLN ST., EXETER, NH FOR LEXIE’S SEASONAL FOOD TRUCK TO 644 
PARK THE FOOD TRUCK ON APRIL 27, 2019 AT POST OFFICE SQUARE, 10 SHALEIGH ROAD, 645 
KITTERY.  COUNCILOR PELLETIER SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN 646 
WITH SEVEN VOTING IN FAVOR, NONE OPPOSED, MOTION CARRIES. 647 
 648 

j.    (030219-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from the Kittery School’s 649 
Odyssey of the Mind to fundraise at the Kittery Resource Recovery Facility on Saturday, May 4th 2019 650 
from 9:00 am to 4:00 pm.  There will 8 to 12 students participating, only 4 or 5 at a time, in shifts with 1 651 
or 2 adults to supervise.   652 

 653 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 654 
REQUEST FROM THE KITTERY SCHOOL’S ODYSSEY OF THE MIND TO HOLD A FUNDRAISER 655 
AT THE KITTERY RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY ON MAY 4, 2019 FROM 9:00 A.M. TO 4:00 656 
P.M., WITH NOTIFICATION TO THE ORGANIZATION THAT THE FUNDRAISING TAKES PLACE IN 657 
THE DESIGNATED AREA ON THE PROPERTY, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR PELLETIER.  ROLL 658 
CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN FAVOR, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE.  MOTION 659 
CARRIES. 660 

  661 
k.    (030219-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a request from the Kittery Little 662 

League to fundraise at the Kittery Resource Recovery Facility on Saturday, May 18th from 9:00 am to 663 
3:00 pm in conjunction with their Tag Day.   664 
 665 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 666 
REQUEST FROM THE KITTERY LITTLE LEAGUE TO HOLD A FUNDRAISER AT THE KITTERY 667 
RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY ON SATURDAY, MAY 18TH, 2019, FROM 9:00 A.M. TO 3:00 668 
P.M., IN THE APPROPRIATE LOCATION.   COUNCILOR PELLETIER SECONDED THE MOTION.  669 
ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN FAVOR, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, 670 
MOTION CARRIES. 671 
 672 

l.     (030219-14) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a Municipal Release Deed from 673 
DSS LAND HOLDINGS LLC, PO Box 242, York, Maine 03909 for Map/Lot 60-24. 674 
                    675 
Chairperson Spiller asked the Town Manager if she could give an explanation on this item. 676 
 677 
Town Manager Amaral replied that she was requested by the Town Council, when she first arrived, to 678 
see if we could better secure the Sowerby property.  She said since this is moving forward with plans to 679 
develop it for residential use and a hotel, and the property was under foreclosure, in order to transfer 680 
the property, Council needs to sign the release deed for outstanding liens.  She said the property is 681 
being sold tomorrow and demolition of the old building will begin very soon. 682 
 683 
 684 
 685 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

15 

 686 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED THAT THE KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL APPROVE THE 687 
MUNICIPAL RELEASE DEED AS PRESENTED, FROM DSS LAND HOLDINGS, LLC, YORK, 688 
MAINE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 459 U.S. ROUTE ONE, KITTERY AND IDENTIFIED AS TAX 689 
MAP 60, LOT 24.  COUNCILOR DENAULT SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS 690 
TAKEN WITH SEVEN VOTING IN FAVOR, NONE IN THE NEGATIVE, MOTION CARRIES. 691 
 692 
14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 693 
 694 
Councilor Lemont was approached by constituents regarding traffic between 3:00 pm and 4:00 pm on 695 
Rogers Road.  He said the bus stops there and lets kids off from the after-school program.   He wanted 696 
to know if the bus driver could pull up on Goodsoe Road and let the children off closer to the building. 697 
 698 
Councilor Lemont appreciated the time the legislative delegation took to be with Council at the 699 
workshop.  He requested – through the Chair to the Town Manager – that a follow-up letter with 700 
Council’s concerns be sent to them so it is documented.  He believed that they are:  Councilor 701 
Thomson – DOT Transportation Plan; Councilor Brock – climate change credits; himself – Municipal 702 
Revenue Sharing and the Chair mentioned numerous times – can they track LD335, Reimbursement to 703 
Host Communities for Retail Marijuana. 704 
 705 
Councilor Thomson said it is about 6 months ago, through the Chair to the Town Manager, they 706 
implemented 4-hour parking on Walker Street from the ambulance building to Route 1 and wanted to 707 
know if the Town Manager could devise a process, maybe someone from the Planning Dept. or the 708 
CEO, to survey the businesses in the Foreside as to how many employees are parking, and what days 709 
and times they are parking from 6:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  He is interested in 710 
gathering data as he has his suspicions. 711 
 712 
Councilor Thomson secondly, about six months ago, the Town Manager was able to get information 713 
from DOT and requested a speed limit change on State Road.    He wanted to know if DOT has given 714 
any further insight on that issue to the Town Manager. 715 
 716 
Councilor Thomson said, to follow up on Mr. Gray’s comment, 2022 is the 375th anniversary of the 717 
incorporation of the Town of Kittery.  He said Portsmouth is celebrating their 400th anniversary of being 718 
incorporated in 2023, and they have a Committee that has been working on this for a couple of years 719 
now.  He said they may want to consider how they want to observe that exciting event in the town. 720 
 721 
Councilor Pelletier said he would like to nominate Councilor Thomson as Chair of the 375th celebration 722 
of the incorporation of the Town of Kittery.  Chairperson Spiller said she would second that motion but 723 
she would like to amend it that Councilor Thomson would take care of the administrative duties and 724 
Bob Gray could take of the ceremony. 725 
 726 
Councilor Denault wanted to speak to Workforce Housing.  He said that he, Councilor Lemont, 727 
Councilor Clark and Councilor Thomson attended the Fair Tide event and he believed the raised 728 
$38,000 for Workforce Housing.  He said people are hearing about it. 729 
 730 
Councilor Denault said something came up recently and we need to be careful.  He showed everyone a 731 
photograph of camping sites.  He said these are homeless people who are camping in Kittery and he 732 
would like the town to talk to them to find out if we can give them better shelter. 733 
 734 



Kittery Town Council Unapproved Minutes March 25, 2019 

16 

 735 
Councilor Denault said the crosswalk at Gate 2 of the Shipyard is still not marked.  He wanted to know, 736 
through the Chair to the Town Manager, if she could look into it and get some signs put up.  He said 737 
someone had been killed there last year. 738 
 739 
Councilor Denault said he learned a lot from the water treatment discussion.  He said to look at him, 740 
Councilor Lemont and Councilor Thomson – they are losing their hair and maybe that’s why.  He said 741 
they should look into that. 742 
 743 
Councilor Denault said also, they should be looking at speed limit signs and deer crossing signs on 744 
Cutts Road. 745 
 746 
Councilor Denault said they need to stay on top of the bus situation at Dineen’s and get an update on 747 
what is happening. 748 
 749 
Councilor Denault mentioned the recent passing of Janet Thorpe and Genevieve Benton and said their 750 
thoughts and hearts go out to the families. 751 
 752 
Chairperson Spiller said there was an article in the Portsmouth Herald regarding public access to the 753 
beach by the Kittery Land Trust and people need to stay within those boundaries and not trespass. 754 
 755 
15.   COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS - NONE 756 
 757 

a. Communications from the Chairperson  758 
b. Committee Reports  759 

 760 
16.  EXECUTIVE SESSION - NONE 761 
 762 
17.   ADJOURMENT     763 
         764 
COUNCILOR THOMSON MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 7:35 P.M., SECONDED BY 765 
COUNCILOR PELLETIER.  ALL WERE IN FAVOR BY A VOICE VOTE.  MOTION CARRIES. 766 
 767 
Respectfully submitted, 768 
 769 
Barbara Boggiano 770 
Recording Secretary 771 
 772 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 
 

 
R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  C O U N C I L  

 
Meeting Date: September 9, 2019 

Updated:  September 23, 2019  

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Vehicles and Traffic – Title 10 Amendments 

Councilor Sponsor: Chairperson Judy Spiller 

 
 
This proposed amendment to Title 10 will address sight lines at the intersection of Main Street 
and Walker.  It will result in the loss of two parking spots on Walker Street. 
 
The amendment is being brought forward at the request of residents on Main Street.  DPW 
Commissioner Rich and I met on site with the interested residents, and discussed the sightline 
obstructions and possible solutions. 
 
State guidelines are to restrict parking 20’ – 30’ from the corner of an intersection.  The proposed 
parking restrictions would achieve a 30’ clear sightline for both sides of Main Street at the 
intersection with Walker on the east side of Main.  The southwest corner already has a 30’ 
sightline.  The only corner that would not have a 30’ sightline is the northwest corner, which has 
not been identified by the residents as an issue. 
 
PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION 
Approve amendments as proposed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Proposed Amendments to Title 10 – Vehicles and Traffic 
• Proposed Enactment 
• Visual representation of proposed amendments 

 
 



DRAFT: September 9, 2019 
UPDATED: September 23, 2019 

ADD to Title 10 Parking Prohibited at all times the following: 
§ 10.3.1.1 Prohibited at all times.  
Walker Street, north side, from the corner of Main Street, easterly 30 feet  

Walker Street, south side, from the corner of Main Street, easterly 30 feet 

 



KITTERY TOWN CODE TITLE 10, PROPOSED AMENDMENT –  

PARKING RESTRICTION MAIN STREET AND WALKER STREET 

DRAFT: September 9, 2019 
UPDATED: September 23, 2019 

 

AN ORDINANCE relating to the municipality’s authority for Town governance to give due and 1 
proper attention to its many demands pursuant to the Town Charter, Federal law, and Maine 2 
Revised Statutes, and more particularly where set forth in Maine Revised Statutes Title 30-A, 3 
Municipalities and Counties. 4 

WHEREAS, the Kittery Town Council is authorized to enact this Ordinance, as specified in 5 
Sections 1.01 and 2.07(3) of the Town Charter; 30-A MRS §3001, 36 MRS §6232 and §6271, 6 
pursuant to its powers that authorize the town, under certain circumstances, to provide for the 7 
public health, welfare, morals, and safety, and does not intend for this Ordinance to conflict with 8 
any existing state or federal laws; and 9 

WHEREAS, the Town seeks to increase safety and improve sightlines where Main Street and 10 
Walker Street intersect. 11 

NOW THEREFORE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLES 30-A MRS §3001, 36 MRS §6232 and 12 
§6271, AND TOWN CHARTER §2.14, THE TOWN OF KITTERY HEREBY ORDAINS 13 
AMENDMENT TO TITLE 10 OF THE TOWN CODE, AS PRESENTED. 14 

INTRODUCED and read in a public session of the Town Council on the ____ day of _______, 15 

20___, by:__________________ {NAME}   Motion to approve by Councilor 16 

__________________ {NAME},  as seconded by Councilor __________________ {NAME} and 17 

passed by a vote of _______. 18 

THIS ORDINANCE IS DULY AND PROPERLY ORDAINED by the Town Council of Kittery, 19 

Maine on the ______ day of _______, 20___, {NAME}, __________________ , Chairperson 20 

Attest:  {NAME}, __________________Town Clerk 21 



376.2

Town of Kittery

Feet376.2

This information has been complied from various public and private sources. While every attempt has been made to provide accurate

information, neither the municipality nor the service host guarantee the accuracy of information provided herein.

188.080

8/27/2019

Printed on : 

Legend

Parcels

Roads

World Imagery

Low Resolution 15m Imagery

High Resolution 60cm Imagery

High Resolution 30cm Imagery

Citations

kamaral
Line

kamaral
Line

kamaral
Typewritten Text

kamaral
Text Box
No Parking (lose 2 parking spots)

kamaral
Typewritten Text
Parking Restriction Walker/Main







 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 
 

 
R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  C O U N C I L  

 
Meeting Date: September 23, 2019 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Appropriation of Unassigned Funds – Municipal Property Tax Assistance 
(Senior Tax Credit) 

Councilor Sponsor: Chairperson Judy Spiller 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
In accordance with Town Meeting Warrant Article 8, the Town Council may appropriate up to 
$50,000 from unassigned funds for the Municipal Property Tax Assistance program.  This request 
is seeking such approval to support the FY20 tax credits approved.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The Kittery voters authorized the Town Council to appropriate and expend unassigned funds to 
credit property taxes owed for certain residents that meet the program requirements. The article 
was approved with a vote of 369 in favor and 49 opposed. 
 
The program is administered in accordance with Title 13.4.3 of the Town Code. 
 
This is the second year for the program.  Last year, 40 applicants qualified for a $1,000 tax credit.  
This year, approximately 53 applicants have qualified for the $1,000 tax credit.  Approved 
applicants will have the credit applied to the first tax bill of the fiscal year. 
 
PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the appropriation as proposed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• 2019 Town Meeting Warrant results 





kamaral
Highlight









































 
TOWN OF KITTERY 

WARRANT FOR MUNICIPAL ELECTION 
 
 

COUNTY OF YORK, SS                     STATE OF MAINE 
 
To Robert Richter, a constable (or resident) of this municipality: 
 
You are hereby required in the name of the State of Maine to notify the voters of the Town of 
Kittery of the election described in this warrant: 
 
TO THE VOTERS OF THE TOWN OF KITTERY:   
 
You are hereby notified that the MUNICIPAL ELECTION in this municipality will be held at 
the KITTERY COMMUNITY CENTER, 120 Rogers Road, on NOVEMBER 5, 2019, to 
determine the following: 
 
 
To elect two members to the Town Council for three year terms. 

To elect three members to the School Committee for three year terms. 

 

 

BOND REFERENDUM 

RICE PUBLIC LIBRARY EXPANSION, RENOVATIONS AND IMPROVEMENT 
 
"Shall the Town of Kittery council be authorized to issue bonds in a total amount not to 
exceed 
$5,000,000 for the purpose of funding costs to expand, renovate, and improve the Rice 
Public 
Library?" 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
Background 
 
The Town of Kittery is seeking to expand, renovate, and improve the Rice Public Library.  
The project will result in a 21st century library that is consolidated into a single building, 
accessible to all visitors/ADA accessible; with space for collections, children, young adult, 
and adult programs, flexible community meeting and program space, technology to meet 
the evolving needs for information access, and adequate parking. 
 



The construction and associated soft costs for implementation of the project are estimated 
to be $5,000,000. Grants and private donations may be used to augment the project budget 
for enhanced building features, landscaping, furniture, fixtures, equipment and technology. 
 
The Library is a department of the Town of Kittery, and all assets of the Library including 
the Rice Building and the Taylor Building are owned by the Town. 
 
The debt will be general obligation bonds, funded through annual tax revenue.  The 
estimated cost of interest, at 3%, is $1,574,583, and the estimated total cost of principal and 
interest at maturity is $6,574,583. 
 
The total amount of bonds outstanding and unpaid is $23,927,920.  The Town's capital 
improvement program ("CIP") policy bonding limit, 2.5% of Total Valuation, is 
$42,997,500. If the proposed bonds are approved, the Town will be at 67.3% of its total CIP 
policy bonding limit. The Town does not have authorized, unissued bonds. 
 
The validity of the bond and of the voter s' ratification of the bond may not be affected by 
any errors in the estimate made pursuant to Town Charter 6.07 paragraph (2). If the 
actual amount of the total debt service for the bond varies from the estimate, the 
ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond is not 
affected by reason of the variance. 
 
 
 
The polls shall be opened at 8:00 a.m. and closed at 8:00 p.m. 
 
Absentee ballots will be processed centrally at 9:00 a.m., 10:00 a.m., 11:00 a.m., 12:00 p.m., 
1:00 p.m., 2:00 p.m., 3:00 p.m., 4:00 p.m., 5:00 p.m., 6:00 p.m., 7:00 p.m., and 8:00 p.m. 
 
The Registrar of Voters will hold office hours while the polls are open to correct any error, or 
change a name or address on the voting list; to accept the registration of any person who becomes 
18 years of age on Election Day or after the close of registration prior to it; and to accept new 
enrollments. 
 
A person who is not registered as a voter may not vote in any election. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Dated at Kittery this 23rd day of September, 2019.        
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
 
A true copy      ______________________________  
ATTEST:  _____________________________                  MUNICIPAL OFFICERS 
                             TOWN CLERK 
 





 
September 6, 2019 
 
Town of Kittery 
Attn:  Karen Estee 
200 Rogers Road 
Kittery, ME  03904 
 
Dear Council Members, 
 
The Kiwanis Club of The Seacoast is requesting permission from the Town to sponsor 
the annual Kittery Holiday Parade on Saturday – December 7, 2019 and to have the 
following Kiwanis Club member appointed as the Town’s Official Parade Committee:   
 
 Glen Philbrook  41 Love Lane  Kittery 
 
The parade will start at Post Office Square at 3:00pm, follow the traditional parade 
route through the downtown area, and conclude at the John Paul Jones Park with the 
tree lighting ceremony.   
 
Should the case of inclement weather, we would like to have a rain date of Sunday – 
December 8, 2019 at 3:00 pm as the backup plan. 
 
The Kiwanis Club of the Seacoast has sponsored the parade since 1994 and is looking 
forward to another successful community event again this year.   
 
If you should have any questions concerning the parade, please contact Glen Philbrook 
at cell 603-799-8453 or Dan Witham (contact information below) 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Daniel R Witham 
Secretary 
Kiwanis Club of the Seacoast 
603-559-2614 w or 603-969-4694 c 
 
 

Kiwanis Club of the Seacoast  PO Box 285, Kittery, ME  03904 
Frank Dennett – President Glen Philbrook – Immediate Past President  

Dan Witham – Secretary Kim Marsh - Treasurer 



 

 

CONFIDENTIAL & RESTRICTED 

September 17, 2019 
 
 
 
Dear Town Council, 
 
 
My name is Heather Renee Seward. I am writing to you on behalf 
of the Traip Athletic Boosters. I am requesting permission to 
have a banner flown in front of the Kittery Community Center. 
The banner is to promote the Traip Athletic booster craft fair. 
The craft fair is on November 9th, 2019. We would like to have 
the banner flown beginning October 21st through October 
25th 
 
. 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Heather Renee Seward 
41 Seward Farm Lane 
Kittery, ME 03904 
207 467-5787 
















	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPB9CE.tmp
	COUNTY OF YORK, SS                     STATE OF MAINE

	2019.09.23 Title 10 Parking Main Street.pdf
	ADPAC5B.tmp
	Proposed Solution/Recommendation
	Attachments


	2019.09.23 Senior Tax Credit Transfer.pdf
	ADP2EF8.tmp
	PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	2019.09.23 Title 10 Parking Main Street.pdf
	ADPAC5B.tmp
	Proposed Solution/Recommendation
	Attachments


	Blank Page



